# TRINITY PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH

Winston-Salem, NC

# CHILDREN AND YOUTH POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL



TPC Policy Manual Original – January 2016

1416 Bolton Street, Winston-Salem, NC 27103 (336) 765-8779 www.trinitypresbyterianchurch.org





1416 Bolton St. Winston-Salem, NC

\_\_\_\_\_

(This page intentionally left blank)

Original Jan2016 Page 2 of 24



# 1416 Bolton St. Winston-Salem, NC

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

A Vision for Children and the Church	4
CHILDREN AND YOUTH PROTECTION POLICY	5
ABUSE DEFINE	5
SCREENING/APPLICATION PROCESS	6
TRAINING	7
OUTSIDE GROUPS	7
SUPERVISION GUIDELINES	
PROHIBITED CONDUCT	
REPORTING OBLIGATIONS	
INCIDENT REPORT FORM	14
RESPONDING COMMITTEE REPORT	15
REPORT TO FORSYTH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES	16
VOLUNTEER COVENANT STATEMENT	18
EMPLOYEE AGREEMENT CHILD AND YOUTH PROTECTION POLICY	19
APPLICATION TO WORK WITH CHILDREN AND YOUTH	20
AGREEMENT FOR NON-AFFILIATED GROUPS UTILIZING CHURCH FACILITIES	21
N.C.G.S.A. § 7B-101	22
HELPFUL RESOURCES AND ORGANIZATIONS	24



1416 Bolton St. Winston-Salem, NC

\_\_\_\_\_

#### CHILDREN AND YOUTH PROTECTION POLICY

January 2016

#### A Vision for Children and the Church

Adopted by the 205th General Assembly (1993)

Because we affirm that all children are a gift of God, created by God and created good;

all children are a gift to the whole of the human community;

all children have a real faith, and gifts for ministry;

all children have the right to be children;

and all children are not just tomorrow, they are today.

Because we believe that all children depend upon adults for safety and security in a world that does not always value children;

All children are affected first and most deeply by those things that work against health and wholeness:

where there is disease, children sicken and die;

where there is homelessness, children sleep on the streets and in other dangerous places;

where there is war, children are frightened and without a safe place;

where the air and water are polluted, children feel the effect in their bodies and in their futures;

where there is shame, children's spirits are wounded.

Therefore we hope for a world where all children can find a safe place;

where all ages, races, genders, creeds, and abilities are recognized, valued, and celebrated;

where all adults hear the voices of children and speak with as well as for them; where all children have "first call" on the world's resources and first place in the minds and hearts of the world's adults.

Because Jesus welcomed children and encouraged us to welcome them in his name; Jesus lifted up a child as an example of what the realm of God is like;

Therefore we hope for a church where we take seriously our baptismal vow to nurture all children committed to our care;

where we bring good news to all those places where children are in need; where adults and children alike share in ministry.

We covenant to act so that this vision may be made real for all children, now and in times to come.



1416 Bolton St. Winston-Salem, NC

\_\_\_\_\_

#### PURPOSE AND SCOPE OF CHILDREN AND YOUTH PROTECTION POLICY

At Trinity Presbyterian Church ("TPC") we are committed to the protection of all children, youth, and adults participating in the activities and programs sponsored by TPC. Consequently, TPC will not tolerate abuse, exploitation, neglect and/or harassment of any form in our church sponsored activities and those child and youth activities held on church property. In furtherance of our goal of protection, TPC has developed the following Child and Youth Protection Policy ("Policy"). This policy applies to all persons, including TPC employees and volunteers working with TPC children and youth. Prior to engaging in children and youth ministries, each employee and volunteer (collectively "adult(s)" or "supervising youths") must be familiar with this Policy, attend training sessions if required, and agree in writing to abide by the terms of the Policy.

Failure to abide by this Policy may result in termination from employment or volunteer activities with children and youth. TPC retains the right to terminate employment or volunteer services regardless of the results of any formal investigation by the Department of Social Services.

#### **ABUSE DEFINED**

**Neglect of Basic Needs** is a form of abuse. Denial of food, water, cleanliness, clothing, and sleep are not appropriate means of discipline.

**Physical Abuse** is any physical force applied by an adult or older youth in a position of care of authority to a child, youth, or vulnerable adult. Physical force (hitting, spanking, shaking, shoving, etc.) is not to be used by leaders in our programs.

**Sexual Abuse** is any sexual contact or interaction (i.e., indecent exposure or liberties, communication for immoral purposes, fondling, rape, etc.) between an adult or significantly older youth and a child, youth, or vulnerable adult. Force, threats, bribery, dissemination of pornography, misrepresenting right and wrong are some of the ways this crime is perpetrated. Even if a child, youth, or vulnerable adult, out of ignorance, innocence, or fear does not resist, it is still abuse.

**Emotional Abuse** is belittling, hateful, or angry words and/or actions directed toward a child, youth, or vulnerable adult. Discipline by humiliation is also emotional abuse.



1416 Bolton St. Winston-Salem, NC

\_\_\_\_\_

#### SCREENING/APPLICATION PROCESS

## **Employees**

#### **Current Employees (Part- and Full Time)**

- 1. Current employees must agree to provide the requisite information and authorization for a criminal background check if such background check has not been conducted in the twelve months prior to the adoption of this policy.
- 2. Current employees are required to sign the Employee Agreement Regarding Child and Youth Protection Policy which shall supplement the personnel application and be maintained as part of the employee's personnel file.

## **Potential Employees**

- Potential employees must be required to provide personal and professional references, employment records, and requisite information and authorization to conduct criminal background checks.
- 2. Potential employees shall be interviewed in person prior to hiring.
- 3. Potential employees shall be required to sign the Employee Agreement Regarding Child and Youth Protection Policy as part the personnel application.

## **Automatic Disqualification**

Any potential employee who has a known past conviction of or pending proceeding involving allegations of child abuse, neglect or dependency, shall not be employed by TPC. Further, a criminal conviction related to pedophilic behavior, incest, rape, assault, child pornography, abuse of a minor, or a drug related conviction (occurring within the last three years), shall immediately disqualify the candidate for employment consideration.

## **Screening Volunteers**

At the discretion of the Personnel Committee, criminal background checks may be performed on all volunteers who work with children and youth.

**Basic Screening** for volunteers serving in the Little Lights Nursery, Big Bright Lights, Sunday School, and other children and youth activities, includes the following requirements:

- 1. All volunteers shall read and sign a Volunteer Application Form.
- 2. All volunteers shall undergo a brief interview with the Pastor, a member of the Christian Education Committee or other designated individual.
- 3. All volunteers shall attend a volunteer training session, which shall be offered at least once a year.
- 4. All volunteers will have been a member or had a significant relationship with Trinity for at least six months.

This is a controlled document which resides on the Trinity Presbyterian Church server. Copies should be checked for current revision.

Original Jan2016 Page 6 of 24



1416 Bolton St. Winston-Salem, NC

**Advanced Screening** for volunteers supervising overnight activities, engaging in solo activities with child/youth, and transporting children and youth off church premises, includes the following requirements:

- 1. Basic screening requirements as set forth above.
- 2. Submitting necessary information and authorization for a national criminal records check and other background checks as deemed necessary.
- 3. Prior to transporting children or youth, the volunteer shall provide a copy of a valid NC driver's license, proof of insurance and current Motor Vehicle Record.
- 4. Advanced screening will take place every two years or more frequently as deemed necessary by the Personnel Committee.

#### **TRAINING**

All adults and supervising youth shall review and sign the Volunteer Covenant Statement or Employee Agreement Regarding Child and Youth Protection Policy prior to participating in activities with children and youth. All adults and supervising youth shall attend a training session in person or review a video recording of the training session. Training may include, but not be limited to, issues about their responsibilities, defining abuse, reporting abuse requirements, supervision, safety and security, church guidelines, and first aid. The Christian Education Committee shall be responsible for scheduling and providing the training.

#### **OUTSIDE GROUPS**

Groups not directly affiliated with TPC, such as the Boy and Girl Scouts, visiting Youth Groups, Mission Groups, etc., must receive, review, and adhere to this Policy. Leaders of outside groups must sign the Trinity Presbyterian Church Agreement for Non-Affiliated Groups Utilizing Church Facilities, in which they agree to receive, review and abide by the procedures and policies set forth in the Policy. The Business Manager shall keep the signed copy of the Agreement with any documentation related to the outside group's use of the church facilities. TPC, however, will not provide any screening or training as set forth in the Policy to the outside groups.

#### **SUPERVISION GUIDELINES**

To guard against the potential of abuse or injury, it is important that all of those working with children understand the necessity of proper supervision. The following ratios are to be used as guidelines:

#### **GROUP SIZE**

	6	8	10	12	14	16	18	20	22	24
AGE OF CHILDREN										
Infant (birth to 15 months)	1:3	1:4								
12-28 Months	1:3	1:4	1:4	1:4						
21-36 Months		1:4	1:5	1:6						
2.5 years – 3 years old				1:6	1:7	1:8	1:9			
4 years old						1:8	1:9	1:10		
5 years old						1:8	1:9	1:10		

This is a controlled document which resides on the Trinity Presbyterian Church server. Copies should be checked for current revision.

Original Jan2016 Page 7 of 24



## 1416 Bolton St. Winston-Salem, NC

Kindergarten				1:10	1:11	1:12

#### 1. Classrooms / Nurseries

- a. When possible the Little Lights Nursery shall be supervised by two adults. The second adult may be a "floater" (for example, the Head Usher) who frequently checks in. If two adults are not available, or if the number of children indicates two supervisors, a youth, who has been trained, may assist the adult in supervising a group of children 7 years old and younger. Two supervising persons should be present any time a diaper is changed.
- b. Big Bright Lights shall be supervised by one adult unless the adult needs an assistant. If there is only one adult, the "floater" will check in.
- c. If the supervisors of LLN or BBL needs assistance, they can use the walkie talkie to page the Head Usher or other designated individual.
- d. Two youths, at least 14 years old and who have been trained, ("supervising youths") may supervise a group of children 7 years old and younger if adult(s) are located nearby, within shouting distance. The adult(s) shall periodically check on the group to determine if the youths need any assistance.
- e. If only one adult is available to supervise the group, the door shall remain at least partially opened or have a window in the door.
- f. Each classroom/office providing services to children must have an open door, a small window in the door, or a half-door with the top open.

#### 2. Restrooms

#### a. On site TPC

Adults accompanying pre-school age children to the restroom should remain outside the bathroom door unless the child needs assistance. If so, the adult may assist but the bathroom door should remain open.

Adults typically do not need to accompany a school age child to the restroom on site at TPC. After informing the adult supervisor, the school age child may go directly to the rest room by him/herself or may choose a same gender buddy to accompany him/her. If a child is sick or needs help the adult may assist but the bathroom door should remain open.

#### b. Off site

An adult must accompany a child to the restroom and wait outside the door or stall for the child.

#### 3. Overnight CYM

For sleeping arrangements, members of the same gender should be grouped together. At least two adults of the same gender must be present if the adults and youth are required to share sleeping accommodations.

#### 4. Transportation

A single adult may not transport a single child to a CYM function unless written or verbal consent has been given by the child's parent or guardian.

This is a controlled document which resides on the Trinity Presbyterian Church server. Copies should be checked for current revision.

Original Jan2016 Page 8 of 24



1416 Bolton St. Winston-Salem, NC

\_\_\_\_\_

## 5. Membership or Association

In order to participate in CYM, an adult or youth must have been a member of or associated with TPC for a period of at least six months prior to the volunteer opportunity. This restriction may be waived if the adult will not be in a position to be alone with any of the children or youth during the CYM.

#### PROHIBITED CONDUCT

TPC prohibits adults from engaging in the following behavior during ANY TPC activities:

- a. Verbally, emotionally, physically harassing or abusing children and youth.
- b. Corporal punishment in any form.
- c. Failing to provide necessities of care, including failure to provide access to bathroom facilities.
- d. Physically restraining a child or youth, unless the restraint is for the protection of the child or youth.
- e. Leaving a child or youth unsupervised.
- f. Changing diapers unless assigned to the volunteer staff.
- g. Releasing a child into the care of anyone other than the child's parent or guardian, or other individual authorized by the parent or guardian.
- h. Using alcohol or illegal drugs during a church event.
- i. Smoking or use of tobacco products during a church event.
- j. Profane language or inappropriate jokes, including but not limited to, jokes reflecting gender bias, sexual bias, racial bias, or mental disability.

#### REPORTING OBLIGATIONS

#### Generally

TPC encourages employees and volunteers to offer a nurturing and safe environment for our children and youth. To the extent that they are able, employees and volunteers should be cognizant of the emotional and physical health of the children and youth in their care. Employees and volunteers are required to follow the requirements of this policy in reporting suspected cases of child abuse and neglect.

Reporting and Responding to Violations of Policy (No Abuse or Neglect Suspected)
Adults and supervising youth have an opportunity and obligation to observe the conduct
of those working with our children and youth. If an adult observes a policy violation that
does not cause immediate concern for the safety of the children, the observer should
remind the other adult of the policy in a non-confrontational manner and ask for
adherence. If a supervising youth observes a policy violation that does not cause
immediate concern for the safety of the children, the observer should notify the

This is a controlled document which resides on the Trinity Presbyterian Church server. Copies should be checked for current revision.

Original Jan2016 Page 9 of 24



1416 Bolton St. Winston-Salem, NC

supervising adult or Director of Christian Education ("DCE")\* of the violation. The supervising adult or DCE shall remind the adult violating the Policy of the Policy provisions in a non-confrontational manner and ask for adherence.

If, following the reminder, the adult continues to engage in behavior that violates the Policy, then the observer or adult supervisor, if the observer is a supervising youth, should report the conduct in writing to the DCE by completing an Incident Report. If the reporter makes a verbal report only, the DCE shall complete the Incident Report. Upon receiving an incident report, the DCE must provide the Incident Report to the Pastor as soon as practicable.

## **Composition of the Responding Committee**

If the alleged policy violations involve an employee, the Pastor, DCE, and member of the Personnel Committee, shall form a Responding Committee.

If the alleged policy violations involve a volunteer, the Responding Committee will consist of the Pastor, DCE, and a member of the Christian Education Committee.

If the alleged policy violator involves the Pastor or DCE, the Clerk of Session or chair of the Personnel Committee will replace the alleged violator on the Responding Committee.

## **Investigation by Responding Committee**

The Responding Committee will investigate the allegations in the Incident Report. Such investigation should include interviewing the alleged violator and witnesses to the incidents. The Responding Committee will make recommendations as to remedial measures, up to and including, termination of employment if an employee is the alleged violator. If the repeat violator is not an employee, the Responding Committee can make recommendations as to remedial measures, up to and including, prohibiting the adult or supervising youth from participating in CYM.

### **Duty of Confidentiality**

The Responding Committee should keep all aspects of the investigation, including the fact that an investigation is being conducted, confidential, except to the extent necessary to conduct the investigation and to report to the appropriate authorized persons. If an employee is recommended for termination, the Personnel Committee is to be informed. If a volunteer is prohibited from participating in the CYM, the program staff is to be informed.

#### **Documentation**

The DCE should indicate on the Incident Report the investigative steps and any remedial measures taken to address the violations. If the violator is an employee, then the Incident Report shall become part of the employee's personnel file.

This is a controlled document which resides on the Trinity Presbyterian Church server. Copies should be checked for current revision.

Original Jan 2016 Page 10 of 24



1416 Bolton St. Winston-Salem, NC

Taymin ation of layractivation

## **Termination of Investigation**

If, after conducting an investigation, the Responding Committee suspects abuse or neglect of a child, the Responding Committee shall cease all independent investigation and make a report to the Forsyth County Department of Social Services ("DSS") as set forth below.

## **Suspension during Investigation**

During the pendency of the investigation, the alleged violator will not be permitted to engage in CYM.

## Reporting and Responding to Violations of Policy (Abuse or Neglect Suspected)

## Incidents occurring at TPC or involving TPC Adult

If an adult has cause to suspect that a child or youth is abused or neglected, that adult is required by law to make a report to the Forsyth County Department of Social Services. The report may be made orally, by telephone, or in writing. The report should be made as soon as possible after the adult suspects' abuse or neglect. A copy of the reporting statute is attached as Exhibit A. A copy of the statute granting immunity for good faith reporting is attached as Exhibit B.

# Forsyth County Department of Social Services 336-703-2287

The adult must also report the suspected abuse or neglect to the DCE by completing a written Incident Report Form. This Form should indicate the date of the DSS report and document all contacts with DSS.

The DCE, Pastor or other member of the ministerial staff may be present when the adult makes the report to DSS. It is vitally important; however, that church staff or other adults not interfere with or modify the report to DSS. TPC may not conduct its own investigation into the matter if DSS is involved.

TPC, however, must document all contacts with DSS. Further, TPC staff has an obligation to document additional information or witnesses who come forward and to communicate further reports to DSS.

## Responsibilities of Supervisor (DCE) Receiving Report

Upon receipt of the report alleging suspected abuse or neglect, the DCE must:

- confirm with the reporter that DSS has been contacted:
- if the reporter has not contacted DSS, the DCE must direct the reporter to contact DSS:
- if the reporter refuses to contact DSS, the DCE must make the report;

This is a controlled document which resides on the Trinity Presbyterian Church server. Copies should be checked for current revision.

Original Jan 2016 Page 11 of 24



1416 Bolton St. Winston-Salem, NC

- if an employee is the reporter and does not complete an Incident Report, the DCE or employee supervisor must complete the Incident Report;
- following the report to DSS, the DCE must report the matter to Pastor;
- if the alleged offender is not the child's parent or guardian, as soon as possible the DCE or Pastor must notify the parent or guardian of the suspected abuse or neglect;

The DCE is responsible for documenting all contact with DSS.

Upon receiving notice that DSS has been contacted, the Pastor or designee will immediately contact TPC's liability insurance carrier and provide notification as required by the liability insurance policy. (Call Keith Gouge at Ketner and Associates Insurance Agency (336) 765-3112. Reference Southern Mutual Insurance Company, Policy #SMP 0061649-10).

If a supervising youth suspects abuse or neglect, the youth shall immediately notify the supervising adult or the DCE. The supervising adult or DCE shall then be responsible for making the report to DSS and for following the procedures set forth in this Policy. The supervising adult or DCE shall notify the supervising youth's parent or guardian of the report to DSS based on the youth's report to the supervising adult.

## Suspension during Investigation

During the pendency of the investigation, the alleged violator will not be permitted to engage in any CYM.

## **Abuse or Neglect Occurring Elsewhere**

Children and youth may disclose abuse or neglect to trusted caregivers or teachers. If an adult suspects that a child is being abused or neglected outside the church environment, the adult has an obligation to report the abuse or neglect to DSS. If the child's parent or guardian is not the suspected offender, the adult should inform the parent or guardian of the report to DSS. Although not required to report the suspicion to church staff, the observer may wish to consult with the Pastor or DCE to determine if the child or family needs counseling assistance. The reporter should not discuss the matters with members of the congregation in order to minimize damage to the child and his/her family.

#### **Termination of Employee or Volunteer Relationship**

Due to the length of some DSS investigations and the complexities of documenting and proving abuse or neglect, TPC retains the right to terminate employment of any employee in accordance with established procedures or dissolve the relationship between TPC and adult or supervising youth at any time after the initial report to DSS. TPC may terminate the employee relationship or dissolve the volunteer relationship even if DSS does not substantiate abuse or neglect.

Original Jan2016 Page 12 of 24



1416 Bolton St. Winston-Salem, NC

\*When Trinity Presbyterian Church does not have a DCE, the session will designate another individual to take on that role described in the section "Reporting Obligations." This person may be a member of session or on the CE committee but must have undergone CYM training and be informed of his/her responsibilities.

Original Jan2016 Page 13 of 24



## 1416 Bolton St. Winston-Salem, NC

\_\_\_\_\_

INCIDENT REPORT FORM (Please print a	ıll information.)
Date of incident:	
Time of incident:	
Name of child/youth involved:(A separate form should be completed for earnformation confidential.)	
Address of child/youth:Phone Number of child/youth:	
Name of parent/guardian:	
Location of incident:	
Name of person(s) who witnesses incident:	
Name:	Phone:
Name:	Phone:
Name:	Phone:
Please describe in detail the incident: (Attach additional pages if necessary.)	
Additional relevant information:	
Signature of person completing the form	Date

This form should be returned to the Director of Christian Education and should be filed with the Office Manager.

This is a controlled document which resides on the Trinity Presbyterian Church server. Copies should be checked for current revision.



1416 Bolton St. Winston-Salem, NC

T	TT TT ~	~~~	 	-				

RESPONDING COMMITT	(Please print or type all information.)	
Date Incident Report Direct Date Responding Committee	eed to Pastor:ee formed:	
Responding Committee me	mbers:	
1		
2		
3		
Describe investigative step (Attach additional sheets if	s taken by Responding Committee: necessary.)	
Responding Committee's F (Attached additional sheets	Recommendation for Remedial Action: if necessary.)	
Signatures of Responding of investigation and final reco	Committee Members (To be signed upon completion mmendation.)	on of
1	Date:	
2	Date:	
3	Date:	



1416 Bolton St. Winston-Salem, NC

# REPORT TO FORSYTH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES

(Please print or type all information.)
(All persons initially completing or supplementing this report should list their name and the date immediately following the information they record on this report.)

# FORSYTH COUNTY DSS REPORTING LINE 336-703-2287

Date of Report:	
Person(s) making the report:	
Person(s) present at time of making report:	
Name of DSS employee receiving report:	
Date of incident:	
Time of incident:	
Name of child/youth involved:(A separate form should be completed for each information confidential.)	n child involved in order to keep the
Address of child/youth:Phone Number of child/youth:	
Name of parent/guardian:	
Location of incident:	
Name and address of person(s) who witnesse	d incident:
Name and address:	Phone:
Name and address:	Phone:
Name and address:	Phone:



## 1416 Bolton St. Winston-Salem, NC

For all information requested below, attach additional pages as necessary.

Describe in detail the report given to DSS:

Describe response of DSS to initial report, i.e. action to be taken:

Describe any additional information received from witnesses or other sources after the initial report to DSS. This information should be conveyed promptly to DSS.

Describe all additional contacts with DSS, including name of person making contact, the person contacted, the date, and any information received or provided.

making the contact, the date of contact, the information provided, and any pertinent responses by the parent/guardian.

Describe all contacts with parent(s) or guardian of child, including the name of the person

Original Jan2016



1416 Bolton St. Winston-Salem, NC

\_\_\_\_\_

#### **VOLUNTEER COVENANT STATEMENT**

(To be signed by adults and youth volunteering to work with our children and youth.)

The congregation of Trinity Presbyterian Church is committed to providing a safe and secure environment for all children, youth and volunteers who participate in ministries and activities sponsored by the church. The following policy statements reflect our congregation's commitment to preserving this church as a sanctuary for all who would enter and as a place in which people can experience the love of God through relationships with others.

In keeping with the covenant of baptism, we have committed ourselves and our resources to the nurturing of our children. We understand that children cannot grow in faith and in wisdom when they are frightened, distrustful, anxious, or depressed. They cannot learn to love and trust God when those who represent God to them are unloving and untrustworthy. We promise our children that we will provide the structure, education, and the policies that will keep them safe from harm and abuse. In that context, we will screen volunteers, train them, and ask that they abide by the policies of our church. We will make sure that volunteers working with our children will have been members of or associated with this church for at least six months.

As a volunteer working with children in this congregation, I agree to read, observe and abide by the Trinity Presbyterian Child and Youth Protection Policy regarding working in ministries with children and youth. I understand that failure to abide by the Policy may result in my not being able to participate in children and youth ministries. I further understand that Trinity Presbyterian Church may conduct a thorough investigation into my background using all available methods of investigation, including a criminal background check and a check of any available offender registries. I understand that these investigative procedures are not directed at me personally but are procedures designed to protect our children and youth and the volunteers who work with them.

Signature of Applicant	Date	
Signature of Clerk of Session	Date	



1416 Bolton St. Winston-Salem, NC

\_\_\_\_\_

#### EMPLOYEE AGREEMENT -- CHILD AND YOUTH PROTECTION POLICY

As an employee working with children in this congregation, I agree to read, observe and abide by the Trinity Presbyterian Church Child and Youth Protection Policy regarding working in ministries with children and youth. I understand that failure to abide by the Policy may result in my not being able to participate in children and youth ministries or termination of my employment. I further understand that Trinity Presbyterian Church may conduct a thorough investigation into my background using all available methods of investigation, including a criminal background check and a check of any available offender registries. I understand that these investigative procedures are not directed at me personally but are procedures designed to protect our children and youth and the employees who work with them.

Signature of Applicant	Date
Signature of Clerk of Session	Date



1416 Bolton St. Winston-Salem, NC

# APPLICATION TO WORK WITH CHILDREN AND YOUTH

(To be completed by all applica	nts for any position involving the supervision or custody of minors.)
Date of application:	
Name of applicant:	
Address: Years at this address:	
addresses:	vithin the past seven years, please provide a list previous
	Gender:
Driver's License No(This information will be kept strictly criminal or civil background check or	confidential and shall be used only in connection with conducting a
List previous experience in wo	orking with children and youth:
Provide at least two personal I	references, including name, address and phone number.
I have been a member of TPC	
I am not a member of TPC but	t have been regularly attending services since
I am not a member of TPC.	
knowledge. I authorize TPC to in order to accept my applicati that the procedures requiring by	on is true and accurate to the best of my ability and conduct any necessary criminal or civil background checks on to work with children and youth at TPC. I understand background checks are not directed at me personally but are our children and youth and volunteers who work with them.
Signature of Applicant	

This is a controlled document which resides on the Trinity Presbyterian Church server. Copies should be checked for current revision.



1416 Bolton St. Winston-Salem, NC

\_\_\_\_\_

## AGREEMENT FOR NON-AFFILIATED GROUPS UTILIZING CHURCH FACILITIES

As a supervising member/leader of	_(name of group), I
am responsible for the activities of the members of	(name of
group), while using the facilities of Trinity Presbyterian Church. I have	received and read
a copy of Trinity Child and Youth Protection Policy. I agree to abide by	policies and
procedures set forth in the Policy. I understand, however, that Trinity F	Presbyterian
Church will not perform background checks, personal and professional	reference checks,
or provide training to the leaders/supervisors of	(name of
group.) I further understand that failure to abide by the Policy may res	ult in the
termination of (name of group) use of Trinity P	resbyterian's
facilities on a temporary or permanent basis.	
Signature of Leader/Supervisor Date	



## 1416 Bolton St. Winston-Salem, NC

#### N.C.G.S.A. § 7B-101

**Definitions** 

As used in this Subchapter, unless the context clearly requires otherwise, the following words have the listed meanings:

- (1) Abused juveniles.--Any juvenile less than 18 years of age whose parent, guardian, custodian, or caretaker:
- a. Inflicts or allows to be inflicted upon the juvenile a serious physical injury by other than accidental means;
- b. Creates or allows to be created a substantial risk of serious physical injury to the juvenile by other than accidental means;
- c. Uses or allows to be used upon the juvenile cruel or grossly inappropriate procedures or cruel or grossly inappropriate devices to modify behavior;
- d. Commits, permits, or encourages the commission of a violation of the following laws by, with, or upon the juvenile: first-degree rape, as provided in <u>G.S. 14-27.2</u>; second degree rape as provided in <u>G.S. 14-27.3</u>; first-degree sexual offense, as provided in <u>G.S. 14-27.4</u>; second degree sexual offense, as provided in <u>G.S. 14-27.5</u>; sexual act by a custodian, as provided in <u>G.S. 14-27.7</u>; crime against nature, as provided in <u>G.S. 14-177</u>; incest, as provided in <u>G.S. 14-178</u>; preparation of obscene photographs, slides, or motion pictures of the juvenile, as provided in <u>G.S. 14-190.5</u>; employing or permitting the juvenile to assist in a violation of the obscenity laws as provided in <u>G.S. 14-190.6</u>; dissemination of obscene material to the juvenile as provided in <u>G.S. 14-190.14</u> and <u>G.S. 14-190.15</u>; first and second degree sexual exploitation of the juvenile as provided in <u>G.S. 14-190.16</u> and <u>G.S. 14-190.17</u>; promoting the prostitution of the juvenile as provided in <u>G.S. 14-190.18</u>; and taking indecent liberties with the juvenile, as provided in <u>G.S. 14-202.1</u>;
- e. Creates or allows to be created serious emotional damage to the juvenile. Serious emotional damage is evidenced by a juvenile's severe anxiety, depression, withdrawal, or aggressive behavior toward himself or others: or
- f. Encourages, directs, or approves of delinquent acts involving moral turpitude committed by the juvenile.
- (2) Aggravated circumstances.--Any circumstance attending to the commission of an act of abuse or neglect which increases its enormity or adds to its injurious consequences, including, but not limited to, abandonment, torture, chronic abuse, or sexual abuse.
- (3) Caretaker.--Any person other than a parent, guardian, or custodian who has responsibility for the health and welfare of a juvenile in a residential setting. A person responsible for a juvenile's health and welfare means a stepparent, foster parent, an adult member of the juvenile's household, an adult relative entrusted with the juvenile's care, any person such as a house parent or cottage parent who has primary responsibility for supervising a juvenile's health and welfare in a residential child care facility or residential educational facility, or any employee or volunteer of a division, institution, or school operated by the Department of Health and Human Services. "Caretaker" also means any person who has the responsibility for the care of a juvenile in a child care facility as defined in Article 7 of Chapter 110 of the General Statutes and includes any person who has the approval of the care provider to assume responsibility for the juveniles under the care of the care provider. Nothing in this subdivision shall be construed to impose a legal duty of support under Chapter 50 or Chapter 110 of the General Statutes. The duty imposed upon a caretaker as defined in this subdivision shall be for the purpose of this Subchapter only.
- (9) Dependent juvenile.--A juvenile in need of assistance or placement because the juvenile has no parent, guardian, or custodian responsible for the juvenile's care or supervision or whose parent, guardian, or custodian is unable to provide for the care or supervision and lacks an appropriate alternative child care arrangement.
- (10) Director.--The director of the county department of social services in the county in which the juvenile resides or is found, or the director's representative as authorized in G.S. 108A-14.
- (11b) Investigative assessment response. -- A response to reports of child abuse and selected reports of child neglect and dependency as determined by the Director using a formal information gathering process to determine whether a juvenile is abused, neglected, or dependent.
- (14) Juvenile.--A person who has not reached the person's eighteenth birthday and is not married, emancipated, or a member of the armed forces of the United States.
- (15) Neglected juvenile.--A juvenile who does not receive proper care, supervision, or discipline from the juvenile's parent, guardian, custodian, or caretaker; or who has been abandoned; or who is not provided necessary medical

This is a controlled document which resides on the Trinity Presbyterian Church server. Copies should be checked for current revision.



## 1416 Bolton St. Winston-Salem, NC

care; or who is not provided necessary remedial care; or who lives in an environment injurious to the juvenile's welfare; or who has been placed for care or adoption in violation of law. In determining whether a juvenile is a neglected juvenile, it is relevant whether that juvenile lives in a home where another juvenile has died as a result of suspected abuse or neglect or lives in a home where another juvenile has been subjected to abuse or neglect by an adult who regularly lives in the home.

N.C.G.S.A. § 7B-301

§ 7B-301. Duty to report abuse, neglect, dependency, or death due to maltreatment

Any person or institution who has cause to suspect that any juvenile is abused, neglected, or dependent, as defined by <u>G.S. 7B-101</u>, or has died as the result of maltreatment, shall report the case of that juvenile to the director of the department of social services in the county where the juvenile resides or is found. The report may be made orally, by telephone, or in writing. The report shall include information as is known to the person making it including the name and address of the juvenile; the name and address of the juvenile's parent, guardian, or caretaker; the age of the juvenile; the names and ages of other juveniles in the home; the present whereabouts of the juvenile if not at the home address; the nature and extent of any injury or condition resulting from abuse, neglect, or dependency; and any other information which the person making the report believes might be helpful in establishing the need for protective services or court intervention. If the report is made orally or by telephone, the person making the report shall give the person's name, address, and telephone number. Refusal of the person making the report to give a name shall not preclude the department's assessment of the alleged abuse, neglect, dependency, or death as a result of maltreatment.

Upon receipt of any report of sexual abuse of the juvenile in a child care facility, the director shall notify the State Bureau of Investigation within 24 hours or on the next workday. If sexual abuse in a child care facility is not alleged in the initial report, but during the course of the assessment there is reason to suspect that sexual abuse has occurred, the director shall immediately notify the State Bureau of Investigation. Upon notification that sexual abuse may have occurred in a child care facility, the State Bureau of Investigation may form a task force to investigate the report.

N.C.G.S.A. § 7B-309

§ 7B-309. Immunity of persons reporting and cooperating in an assessment

Anyone who makes a report pursuant to this Article, cooperates with the county department of social services in a protective services assessment, testifies in any judicial proceeding resulting from a protective services report or assessment, or otherwise participates in the program authorized by this Article, is immune from any civil or criminal liability that might otherwise be incurred or imposed for that action provided that the person was acting in good faith. In any proceeding involving liability, good faith is presumed.

WCSR 4005547v1 8 June 2010

Original Jan2016 Page 23 of 24



1416 Bolton St. Winston-Salem, NC

\_\_\_\_\_

## **Helpful Resources and Organizations**

#### The Children's Defense Fund

25 E Street, NW Washington, DC 20001 1-202-628-8787 www.childrensdefense.org

## Presbyterian Child Advocacy Network (PCAN)

A Network of Presbyterian Health, Education and Welfare Association (PHEWA)
Susan Stack and Trina Zelle
100 Witherspoon Street
Louisville, 40202-1396
1-800-728-7228, ext. 5800
1-808-208-9166
www.phewacommunity.org
http://www.presbyterianmission.org/ministries/phewa/

## My Very Own Book About Me! Stowell and Dietzel

ACT for Kids (A Ministry of Lutheran Social Services)
7 South Howard Street
Suite 200
Spokane, WA 99204-0323
1-866-348-5437
www.actforkids.org

## **Channing Bete Company**

http://www.channing-bete.com

Exclusive distributor of Prevent Child Abuse America's publications.

http://shop.pcaamerica.channingbete.com/onlinestore/store.html;jsessionid=A57100448C 3C563413CDEBE4CD11AB7A?cid=

2743&r=v

Sexual Misconduct Policy and Its Procedures of the Presbyterian Church(U.S.A.) (https://www.pcusa.org/resource/presbyterian-church-ussexual-misconduct-policy-an/).

Original Jan2016 Page 24 of 24